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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRIC OF NEW MEXICO 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

PlaintIFF

V. WOHL SHOE COMPANY; 
NORDSTROM'S ALBUQUERQUE, 
INC.; 

PARIS SHOE STORES; and 
PMagSCOT SHOE COMPANY, 

Defendants,, 

Civil Action No, 
9187

Filed: OCTOBER 19, 1971 

(Title 15 U.S.0 § 1; Conspiracy 
in Restraint of Interstate 
Trade and Commerce) 

COMPLAINT 

The United States of America, plaintiff by its attor-

neys, acting under the direction of the Attorney General of 

the United States, brings this action against the defendants 

named herein and complains and alleges as follows: 

JURISDICTION D  VENUE  

1. This complaint is filed and these Proceedings are 

instituted under Section 4 of the Azt 41-  Congress of July 2, 

1890, as amended (15 u.s.c. g 4) COMMONLY known as the 

Sherman ACT in order to prevent AND restrain the continuing 

violation by the deferidants, as hereinafter alleged, of 

Section 1 of sai Act (15 U.S.C. i 1). 

2c Each of the defendants transacts *usiness and is 

found within the District .f New Mexico. 



II 

THE DEFENDANTS 

3, Wohl Shoe Company (hereinafter referred to as "Wohl") 

is hereby made a defendant herein. Wohl is a corporation or-

ganized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri 

with its principal office in St. Louis, Missouri. Wohl is a 

wholly-owned subsidiary of Brown Shoe Company, Inc., .a manu-

facturer of men's, women's and children's shoes. During the 

period of time covered by this complaint, Wohl has engaged 

in the business of selling shoes at retail through over one 

thousand retail shoe stores and leased shoe departments operated 

by it at various locations throughout the United States, in-

cluding four retail shoe outlets in Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

In 1970 Wohl's sales of shoes throughout the United States had 

a retail value of at least $250 million, and its sales of shoes 

in Albuquerque had a retail value of at least $600,000. 

4. Nordstrom's Albuquerque, Inc. (hereinafter referred 

to as 'Nordstrom") is hereby made a defendant herein. Nordstrom 

is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Washington with its principal office in Albuquerque, 

New Mexico. Nordstrom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nordstrom 

Best, Inc., which directly and through its subsidiaries operates 

retail shoe stores and leased shoe departments in various states 

on the Pacific Coast and in Arizona, New Mexico and Texas. 

During the period of time covered by this complaint, Nordstrom 

has engaged in the•  business of selling shoes at retail in 

Albuquerque, New Mexico through a leased shoe department in 

Rhodes Department Store. In 1970 Nordstrom's sale of shoes 

in Albuquerque had a retail value of at least $600,000. 
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5.-  Paris Shoe Stores(hereinafter referred to as 

1Nmris is hby uarle a defendant herein. Paris Is a 

part. ship zed a,1 clAsting under the laws cf the 

Sta.:a ot ii:ico 'its pLicipal office in Albuquerque, 

New 1...xico. During the period of time covered by this 

com1aint Pari3 has engaged in the business of seLl 

stv7cs at retail in Alb -s que New Mexico through three 

retail shoe stores. In 1970 Paris' sales of shoes in 

Ai'ul,Iuerque had a retail value of at least $2.2 million. 

6. Penobscot Shoe Company (hereinafter referred to as 

laolbscot") is hereby made a defendant herein. Penobscot I-

a corporation organized and existing under tho laws of the 

S of Maine with its principal office in Boston Massachusetts. 

D 'ing the I_ iod of timA covered by this complaint Penobscot, 

crectly tad through its vholly-ovaed subsidiaries Old Town 

Shoe C_Liay and Northeas':: Shca Company, has engaged in the 

•bu.si s of manufacturing and 3elling women's shoes to retailers 

throughout the Unite. States. In 1970 Penobscot's sales oi 

b- shoes in thi MI_ A Stated had a retail va1,1 of 

,xiwaily $20 millii and its sales of bl-anded shLJs 

the Li uerque, New markct had a retail 

Imately $40,000. 

III 

0-CONSPIRATORS 

7. 1%lverine World Wide Inc., a corporeica G.53anized 

under the laws of the State of Delaware, various retaiir of 

ia taa Albuquerque New, ico area, and other corpora 

tions companies and individuals not made defendants in this 

complaint participated as co-conspirators with the defendants 

ii the offense alleged herein and performed acts and made 

9.]'• a s in furtherance thereof. 
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Iv 

E AND COMMERCE 

With the exception of Indian mocca8ins, virtually 

all men's, women s and children's shoes sold aL. retaD 

the Albwuerque, New Mexico area are manufaturd in 

 tories Atcluding thoeg 0I enob8cot, -e-ted in VaY-11,0U8 

states other than th State a New Mexicc and in response 

to ordars placed by the defendant retailer's and the x.,:taiters 

of shoes, are transported in interstate co erce dfreci 2ram ti 

such factovies to the retail shoe stores or shoe de-artm&-ts 

of r ailers in the A1bula1411i,e, area. 

During he period of.  time covered by this complaiat, 

defenctznt retailers were the largettt retailers of manufacturers' 

brand name sht.gas in the ediiE to high price rang in the -

Albuquerque area. They accounted for .sales of shoe in the 

Albuquerque area in 1970 having a retail valuit of at leaet. 

r.4 million. 

10. The defendant r L:111rs se-I multi ie lines of shoes 

manufactured by severa_ manufacturing .camppld including 

shoes manufactured by Penobscot, Wolverine World Wide Inc 

and Wohl s parent corperati-mi Brown Shoe Compaay, Inc 

IL The buying habits of the consuming public are very . 

sensitive to changes in styles as well as to changes a4apted 

seasonahl demands„ Waufacturers respond with two main 

....._ferings of shoes during each year in which new styles and 

Las-ions in shoes are introduced to retailers at shoe shows. 

When th shoe retailers or‘L,ov these styles of shoes, the shoes 

ar,  manufactured in respcns- to orders and th publ_e acceptance 

of each new style. Shoes are produced in response to antici- 

pated devLlnd for the seagwa on popul:mr tyioe or on basic 

patlfa:ern5 that ,c,,arry over fr m year to poor 



OFFENSE ALLEGED 

12., Beginning at least as early as 1969, the exact _date 

eing unknown to the plaitttiff, and continuing to the date of 

he filing of this complaunt, the defendants and co-conspirators 

ve engaged in a combination and conspiracy in unreasonable 

straint of the aforesaid inter3tate trade and commerce in 

es, in violation of Section 1 of the Act of Congress of 

uly 2, 1890, as amended (15 USGC § 1), commonly known as 

he Sherman.Acto • Said offense is•continuing- and will continu 

less the relief hereinafter prayed for in this complaint is 

anted_ 

13. The aforesaid combination and conspiracy has con- 

sted of a continuing agreement, understanding and conce, 

 action among the defendants and coconspirators, the sub- 

antial terms of which have been: 

(a) to raise, fix and stabilize the retail 

prices of shoes in the Albuquerque, New Mexico 

area; 

(b) to induce and persuade retailers ,111 f shoes 

in the Albuquerque, New Mexico area to adopt and 

adhere to uniform and non-competitive prices; 

(c) to seek the assistance of uanufactuo 

of shoe s in maintaining the aforesaid uniformand 

noncompetitive retail prices for shoes; 

(d) t induce and persuade manufacturers of 

shoes to refuse to sell to retailers 4f shoes that 

do not adopt the aforesaid uniform and non-competitive 

prices; and 



(e) to refuse to sell to retailers of shoes 

that do not adopt the aforesaid uniform and non-

competitive prices. 

14. For the purpose of forming and effectuating the 

aforesaid combination and conspiracy, the defendants and 

co-conspirators did those things which they combined and 

conspired to do. 

VI 

EFFECTS OF THE COMBINATION AND CONSPIRACY 

15. The aforesaid combination and conspiracy has had, 

among others, the following effects: 

(a) price competition among the defendant and 

co-conspirator retailers of shoes has been restricted 

and suppressed; 

(b) prices of shoe G sold in the Albuquerque, 

New Mexico area by defendant and co-conspirator 

retailers have been raised, fixed and stabilized; 

(c) retailers of shoes in the Albuquerque, 

New Mexico area haveS been deprived of the oppor-

tunity to purchase shoes from certain manufacturers, 

including defendant Penobscot; and 

(d) customers of the defendant and co-

conspirator retailers have been deprived of the 

opportunity to purchase shoes at competitive prices 

and from retailers other than the defendant and co-

conspirator retailers. 

VII. 

PRAYER  

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff prays: 
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1. That the aforesaid combinar and c, piracy 

1 udged and decreed to be unlawful and in violation of 

Section 1 a the Sherman Act. 

2. That each of the defendants, its successors assignees 

and transferees and the respective c.ficers directors agents 

and employees thereof, and all persons acting or c1aiuth,g to 

act on behalf thereof, be perpetually enjoined and restrained 

from continuing to carry out, directly or indirectly, the com-

bination and conspiracy hereinbefore alleged,_ or from engaging 

in any other combination or conspiracy havillg a similar purpose 

or effect, or from adopting or following any practice, plan, 

program or device having a similar purpose or effect.  

3. That each of the retailer defendants its successor 

assignees and transferees, and its officers, direce, Is, agents 

and employees, and all persons acting or claiming to act on 

behalf ehe:eeof, be perpetually enjoined and restrained from: 

(a) exehanging with or divulging to any competitor 

information concerning prices; discount terms, pricing 

intentions, pricing methods or any term or condition 

affecting the retail price of shoes which they sell; 

(b) threatening to or in any way suggesting or 

indicating that it will discontinue or discontinuing 

buying shoes from any manufacturer because such menu 

facturer is selling shoes to any other retailer; 

(c) exchanging with or divulging to any manu 

facturer of shoes information concerning or relating 

to price cutting by any retailer of shoes; and 

(d) suggesting to or agreeing with any manu 

facturer that such manufacturer should refuse to 

sell o a competing retailer of shoes or should take 

any Lefton to compel or encourage any retailer to 

advertise or sell shoes at any particular price or a 



relief as the Court: may deem just and appropriate in the preaises. 

7. That the plaintiff recover the costs of this suit. 

JOHN N. Mitchell
Attorney General 

CHARD W. McLAREN - 
Assistant Attorney General 

BADDIA J. RASHID

JAMES J. COYLE

Attorneys, Department of JUSTICE

VICTOR a. ORTEGA 
United States Attorney 

LAWRENCE W. SOMERVILLE

richard E. NEUMAN

Attorneys, Department of Justice 

price Cifferent from the price at'which such retailer is 

selling shoe. 

4. That defendant Penobscot, its successors, assignees and 

transferees, and its officers directors, agents and emplyees, 

and all persons acting cr claiming to act on bhalf thereof, be 

perpetually enjoined and restrained from selling to auy retailei 

cf shoes on the condition, agreement or underoding that the 

retailer adhere to its suggested resale prices or to any other 

price and from refusing to sell shoes which it manufactures to 

any retailer of shoes because the retailer adheres to or fails 

to adhere to any particular resale price. 

5. That the defendants be required to take such further 

action as the Court may deem necessary and appropriate to 

terminate and dissipate the effects of the unlawful activities 

hereinabove alleged, and to permi't and restore competition 1_11 the 

retail sale of shoes in the klbuquerque,.New Mexico area. 

6. That the plaintiff have such ocher, further and different 
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